SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

JOINT EXECUTIVE/FINANCE COMMITTEE

Jekyll Island Club Hotel Jekyll Island, GA

March 4, 2008

SUMMARY MINUTES

Finance Committee Members:

David Cupka, Chair George Geiger Susan Shipman

Executive Committee Members:

George Geiger, Chair David Cupka Susan Shipman

Council Members:

Robert H. Boyles, Jr. Mark Robson Tony Iarocci Lt. Brian Sullivan

Council Staff:

Bob Mahood Mike Collins Andi Stephens Gregg Swanson

Observers/Participants:

Monica Smit-Brunello Dr. Joe Kimmel Phil Steele Tom McIlwain Dan Whittle James Reeves Sherry Larkin Mac Currin Duane Harris

Duane Harris, Vice-Chair Dr. Brian Cheuvront

Dr. Roy Crabtree John Wallace Tom Swatzel Rita Merritt

Gregg Waugh Kim Iverson Julie O'Dell

Dr. Jack McGovern Dr. Tom Jamir Scott Zimmerman Bruce Irwin Bonnie Ponwith Sear Harold Sarah Fangman The Joint Executive/Finance Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the Club Ballroom of the Jekyll Island Club Hotel, Jekyll Island, Georgia, Tuesday morning, March 4, 2008, and was called to order at 9:50 o'clock a.m. by Chairman David Cupka.

Mr. Cupka: I'll call the Executive/Finance Committee to order. This is a meeting of the Joint Executive and Finance Committee and the first order of business will be Approval of the Agenda. Are there any changes to the agenda? Seeing none, then the agenda is approved.

The next order of business is approval of last December's Joint Executive/Finance Committee meeting minutes. Are there any additions or corrections to the minutes? Seeing none, then the minutes are approved.

That brings us down to our next item of business, which is behind Attachment 1, which is the FY2008 Council Budget Funding. Actually, I think it's on CD 3, the added material. Bob went back and changed it to include last year's budget, alongside this year's budget. In checking the minutes, we confirmed that we have not approved the budget and so we'll need to take action on the budget. I'm going to go ahead and turn it over to Bob and ask him to run over the budget with us and he especially wants to point out some of the sources of funding for this year's budget.

Mr. Mahood: Chairman Cupka is correct. At the last meeting, as you recall, we didn't exactly know how much money we were going to get. We looked at a rough budget of what we thought we might need and we ended up getting I think about \$36,000 less than that and we have since adjusted the budget to accommodate that.

You'll notice over in the far right-hand column that it has the various amounts of where our budget is going to be funded from this year. The line item funding is the line item that the councils get. We get a straight percentage of that, based on an agreement with the other seven regional fishery management councils that was made about eight or nine years ago now.

LAPPs funding, so far I guess we won't have to give that back, until such a time we determine that we're not moving forward on LAPPs. We'll try to spend all of it before that point in time. NEPA funding, NOAA Fisheries was gracious again this year and provided the councils with money out of the line item that they get relative to NEPA activities. Each of the councils got a part of that.

Also, the regulatory streamlining funding, again, it's another line item that NOAA Fisheries gets in their budget and we got \$85,000 out of that. We did not receive any funds from the Magnuson-Stevens Reauthorization Act line item that they got and that's -- We've been battling back and forth with them over that, but at this point in time, we won't receive any funding from that and then we carried forward about \$271,000 from last year, in anticipation, as you recall, that this could be a lean year this year. Thank goodness we had that much to make up what we needed.

Then Bonnie down at the Center has been very gracious and funded the SEDAR program at a level of \$513,000, tied to the SEDAR activities this year. That gives us approximately a \$2.9

million budget and it's laid out over on the left-hand columns, compared to what we had for our budget last year. Our budget last year was about \$2.7 and so we picked up a little over a-hundred-and-seventy-some-thousand dollars this year. Mr. Chairman, if anybody has any questions, I'll be glad to answer them, if I can.

Mr. Cupka: Thank you, Bob. I'll just point out that that increase is largely the same amount of carryover that we had and so we wanted to thank you and staff for your excellent efforts to meet our budget requirements.

Mr. Geiger: I would like to mirror those comments and Bob is judicious in this budget process and he's masterful in determining what our needs are and he seems to always come in under the line. It's amazing when you go to the council chair meeting to listen to the other councils and how they're always wailing about money and trying to fight for additional funding and living beyond their means and they're paying for it. Thank you, Bob, for your diligence and keeping us on track here with this budget process.

Mr. Mahood: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The other thing too is we have -- Our entire staff, we try to be as tight as we can and Mike continues to find savings, areas of savings, as the Administrative Officer. Those of you that turn in any kind of travel know that Cindy is pretty heavy with the green pen. If you deserve more, she'll give it to you and if you deserve less, she'll take it away from you. She does an excellent job trying to find the best prices.

Until you sit around and try to schedule the kind of meetings we hold, especially now including the SEDAR program that the Gulf and the Caribbean is involved in, and the number of people going and coming and flying, it all runs through our AAA right to Cindy and believe me, we've got a lot of travelers that are spoiled.

Cindy will come to me and she works closely with our AAA -- I'm not talking about council members now and don't get me wrong. I'm talking about other people that we bring in from many of the other activities that we have and I want to make that clear, that I'm not talking about council members. She does an excellent job controlling that and making sure we get the most bang for our buck at these meetings. It's a difficult job and she does it well. Having said that, Mr. Chairman, that's all I've got on this.

Mr. Geiger: The one problem is, Bob, I have to carry my own Sani-Shields around to slip over the -- I brought this back for you from Rhode Island, by the way. This was one of the places I was forced to stay and it still provided that service for the paying clients.

Mr. Mahood: The next Allocation Committee meeting is actually going to be upstairs in the Wesleyan College rooms, up above our offices. You're staying across the road at the Value Place Hotel that's next to the detention center, but it's a brand new facility.

Mr. Cupka: Are there other questions or comments from Bob? If not, we will need to take action on this and I would entertain a motion that we approve our 2008 budget.

Mr. Geiger: So moved.

Mr. Cupka: Motion by Mr. Geiger and second by Mr. Harris. Is there discussion on the motion? **Is there any objection to the motion? Seeing none, then that motion is approved.** That brings us down to our second item, to discuss the Calendar Year 2008 to 2010 FMP, Amendment, and Framework Timelines and modify them as appropriate. We'll need to take action on this as well, assuming that we make some changes. Gregg, are you going to go over that for us?

Mr. Waugh: Yes, I would be glad to. I think the primary driver here is going to be the determination of whether or not it's your intent to meet those congressionally mandated timelines for 2010, having the ACLs and accountability measures in place for the species that currently are experiencing overfishing and then 2011 for the others.

That's, frankly, what drives much of this schedule. This is in your briefing book. Amendment 14 we don't anticipate much work on, but once that proposed rule does come in, we'll have to spend a little bit of time working on that. 15A is still undergoing secretarial review and we're expecting to hear fairly soon on that. That won't involve much of our time.

15B, we're scheduled to finalize for submission at this meeting. If this gets deferred to June, it starts compounding the schedule from there on for other activities. Amendment 16, dealing with gag and vermilion, we're scheduled to approve for public hearing at this meeting. We're already three months behind our one-year deadline and so we really need to keep that one moving and we'll be talking about some more specifics of the actions and the timing.

We're looking to hold public hearings in May and then give approval in June. If we can get the DEIS filed and the comment period closes prior to our June meeting, there's some chance you may be able to approve for submitting in June. However, we do have built in to see the final document ready to go in September and that one is under, as I said, a one-year deadline.

Shrimp Amendment 7, this one is not under any sort of deadline, but we have completed the scoping and we're going to be looking at options here. The timeline and the intent is to approve it in June and that has some measures that the industry is certainly interested in seeing in place.

The Comprehensive Allocation Amendment, we've completed the scoping. We just went through our scoping process on the Comprehensive Allocation Amendment, Snapper Grouper Amendment 17, LAPPs, and potential changes to king mackerel. We're scheduled to look at options coming up in June and approving for public hearing in September.

Setting allocations is integral to coming up with your annual catch limits and so that's why we have this progressing along with Snapper Grouper Amendment 17, which will deal with the species that are currently undergoing overfishing, ten species, and we scoped that. You're going to be looking at options, preliminary options, at this meeting and we really need to get you all to focus down on the alternatives that are going to be in there for public hearing, look at it in June, and approve it for public hearing in September.

Right now, we've got the Comprehensive Allocation Amendment and Snapper Grouper

Amendment 17 scheduled to go out to public hearings together in late October or early November, so that we can look to finalize that in December and see the final documents in March of 2009.

We have built in a little bit of flexibility in here, in that if we can't finish these two amendments in March of 2009, we could go to June of 2009 and if we approve it then, that would give the National Marine Fisheries Service six months to have it implemented prior to the deadline of 2010.

LAPPs is one that's not under any sort of deadline. We had discussions about that here earlier. This was the current schedule and certainly if we're not going forward, that will free up some of our staff time. The Comprehensive ACL Amendment we'll discuss in December of this year and approve to go out to scoping.

That is paired with our amendment where we will set our -- We will be setting our annual catch limits and accountability measures for all our other species that are not dealt with in Amendment 17 and so we will have already laid out our allocations through the Comprehensive Allocation Amendment and have that to draw on in our Comprehensive ACL Amendment. This will occupy the bulk of our time in 2009.

The FEP and the FEP Comprehensive Amendment are not under any sort of mandated timeline. We've got those documents and you've got those and we're looking to approve those for public hearing at this meeting and do those public hearings in conjunction with Snapper Grouper Amendment 16, such that you would be looking at the final review -- Public comments in June and final approval in September.

Shrimp closure, we're through the winter period, to the extent that we had a winter period, and so that should be no activity there this year. Mackerel Amendment 18, this is to deal with issues that come out of the SEDAR process.

By the December meeting, we will have SEDAR assessments for king and Spanish mackerel that have been reviewed by the SSC and so we'll know how we need to proceed at the December meeting and we'll need to make the decision of whether we're going to implement those changes via an amendment that also deals with other issues in mackerel or whether we'll just go through the framework procedure to implement those TAC quota changes via the framework.

The spiny lobster amendment prohibiting imports, the Caribbean is the lead on this. The bulk of the work is being done by the Caribbean staff and the Regional Office staff. We'll participate a little bit and help where we can.

The Calico Scallop FMP is something we've got hanging out there and the one other item that we'll be talking about in terms of spiny lobster is the amendment that needs to be in place by 2011 to deal with annual catch limits and there's several other items that may be addressed there as well, but the Gulf Council would be the administrative lead of that amendment and so it wouldn't be a lot of our time and responsibility, other than committee meetings and advisory panel meetings.

That's an overview of where we are in 2008 and let me just take a minute to talk about 2009, if we can survive 2008. Things get a lot better and this is a part of our discussions and intent of how we want to deal with managing our ecosystem. In 2009, what we would have going forward would be the Comprehensive ACL Amendment and the Fishery Ecosystem Plan Comprehensive Amendment 2, because we've already got some items that were deferred from this comprehensive amendment to the next one.

In 2009, we've really got two major items and then however we decide to deal with Mackerel Amendment 18 and so it gets better in 2009 and then in 2010 -- We're looking to finish our Comprehensive ACL Amendment, approve it for public hearing in September, finish up in December of 2009, and then final review in March of 2010. Again, we've got one council meeting of time that we can use, if need be.

We finish that in early 2010 and during 2010, what we're working on is the FEP Comprehensive Amendment that would amend whichever FMPs need to be amended and so we get into this cycle of where we're scoping in February, developing options in March, approving it in June, public hearings in August, the council looking at it in September and coming back and approving the final item in December, if need be. I would be glad to answer any questions.

Mr. Cupka: Thank you, Gregg. Let me just say as an aside that in the many years that I've been associated with this council, I don't ever remember another time when there's been so much work to be done that's associated with deadlines and timelines. The next couple of years are definitely going to be very busy and I'm glad that George has asked that we look at personnel and things in the Personnel Committee meeting, because it's going to be an extremely busy time.

Mr. Geiger: I wish I had probably thought of doing it six months ago, but be that as it may --Gregg, that's a great overview from 3,000 feet. Let's go back to this year. I can't speak for everybody on the council, but from my perspective as chairman, we certainly have to meet the requirements under Magnuson and that should be our prime focus and our aim.

We need to get into the weeds here a bit. I think we always hear this and to me, it's somewhat intimidating to look at this and it's always thankful when you get to the end of it, but I think we need to get back into the weeds from here forward and look at what we've got on the plate and examine exactly what it is we need to do to stay on schedule to meet the requirements that are before us under Magnuson. If you would, let's go back and start with the first one and take us through it, please, so we have a real firm understanding of what we have to do to stay on track.

Mr. Waugh: The first one would be looking at Amendment 16 with gag and vermilion, because 15B we will either finalize here at this meeting or in June.

Mr. Geiger: There is some discussion, apparently, about 15B and whether or not we should move forward or we shouldn't move forward and that will be covered in Snapper Grouper, but maybe we could talk about 15B and the implications involved schedule-wise if we don't, because there are other implications if we do, possibly, but schedule-wise, if we don't move forward with 15B, so we understand now what the implications are of that.

Mr. Waugh: Right now, our schedule is to approve 15B at this meeting. If the decision is to defer until June, it will involve some of Rick's time to revise the document, based on the actions and the analyses that are done. It's not a significant workload on Rick, but my concern is more for -- Again, we're just talking scheduling here and not the pros and cons of whether we finalize it or not, but my concern is if we defer until June, a lot of the council's time between now and June will be taken up dealing with comments on whether or not we should prohibit sale.

When we get to the June meeting in Orlando, Florida, there's going to be so much interest and comments and that we're going to have to schedule an evening session. We have to allow public comment before you all take final action and so assuming that we do that at June, then we submit the document in July.

There's not a lot of demands of staff time, but it will take some of Rick's time and some of the Region's time. Again, the Regional Office economists and social scientists will have to work those analyses into the document and do those analyses. The data have to be collected and so I'm concerned not so much for Rick's time, but more from the Regional Office and the impacts this may have on their folks working on other amendments.

Mr. Geiger: Okay, but I don't get a sense that there's an impact on the following amendments by this slipping. I understand the consequences. You talked about an evening session and you might want to have a day session, on Sunday or something, but we can talk about all that. 15B is kind of a wash as to whether it has an impact on the remaining items on your schedule.

Mr. Waugh: Okay. Then 16, we're scheduled to approve this for public hearing at this meeting and we're looking to do public hearings in May, review public input and DEIS comments in June. If we get the DEIS filed early enough after this meeting, such that the DEIS comment period would end prior to the June meeting, you may be able to give final approval and submit at June. It would probably be more prudent to see all the revisions to the document and look at it in September, but that does put us three months past the one-year deadline.

Mr. Robson: I'm not a member of the committee, but I guess the question I have is what are the consequences of being late on Amendment 16, specifically, with Magnuson-Stevens?

Ms. Smit-Brunello: It's kind of hard to discuss what the consequences would be. Under the Magnuson Act, the year, as you know, ends in June for the council to finish the amendment. However, if the amendment is not adequate, I think it doesn't do you a lot of good to submit something that doesn't take care of the problem and doesn't meet all the other requirements of the Magnuson Act and so it's a bit of a balancing act. That's probably the best I can do.

Mr. Robson: To follow up a little bit, in order for us to do our due diligence on the EIS documents and everything that needs to be in order, that could be a reason for being late, if we're complying with other elements of our federal requirements?

Ms. Smit-Brunello: Yes, that could be a reason. That doesn't release you from the obligation of having to have it done in June, but, again, you want a document that's adequate and if it's not

adequate, then you have to keep working.

Mr. Cupka: I would think that a slippage of three months -- Certainly NMFS wouldn't take over and start the thing over if we were that close, I wouldn't think, but I guess all that has to be taken into consideration, but I had the same concern, just what impacts there would be or what consequences and all. I think if it was going to go six months or a year beyond that it would be a different matter, but in trying to complete the document and do a thorough job and everything, I'm assuming that would be taken into account, but we're in new territory here.

Ms. Smit-Brunello: I think you're right, David, but you just kind of have to weigh the -- It's a balancing act and you have to weigh the options.

Mr. Geiger: I just asked Mac and I remember our discussions as we were working on this amendment that we might get one cycle behind, one council meeting behind, and that's already been discussed. That's fait accompli and I don't think we have any recourse. I think we've made a good faith effort to stay on track and if we do our job at this council meeting, we will stay onto the new schedule, which I think is reflected on the board, right, Gregg?

Mr. Waugh: That's correct. This schedule that we've got laid out has the council reviewing and approving the final document in September and we submit it in September.

Mr. Geiger: I think we all had recognized previously that we were going to be one council cycle behind, for a reason.

Ms. Shipman: The EIS is almost the final document anyway. In essence, you've got the final draft. That's what is going out and arguably you could say we've completed the amendment for the comment, but we just haven't submitted.

Ms. Smit-Brunello: Historically, I think, or recently historically, the DEIS and the public hearing draft have been one and the same. That doesn't have to be true, however, and there have been times, I know recently, I think, in the Gulf last year we had a document that went out -- An amendment went out as a public hearing draft, but it was not up to shape for filing as a DEIS and so the Region worked on it and got it in shape to file as a DEIS while the public hearing aspect went forward under Magnuson. You could have a different situation there.

Dr. Crabtree: Just one thing to reference that circumstance that Monica talked to and one thing I think we all need to be very sensitive to and cognizant of is we went through a lot of discussion and angst over Amendment 13C about modifying documents and when a council takes final action on something and we determine the NEPA document is not adequate or just hypothetically that the economic analysis was not as complete as it needed to be and then we have to come in after the fact and do modifications to the NEPA document and the judge concurred with us that that's legal and there were no violations.

It's a perception issue and it looks like we're changing documents after the council is through and it looks like the council is making decisions before they have all of the analysis and those things. That's the downside of all that. It is a confusing process to the public and I don't think most members of the public really recognize the distinction between the Magnuson amendment and the NEPA document and they're usually, really, a single document. You can't really change one without changing the other. When we get out of sync on these things, it really makes problems for us. It opens us up to an awful lot of criticism.

Back to Amendment 16 and all, I think we keep moving ahead and make every effort to get as far along on this document as we can and if we make great progress and we can come in June and feel comfortable and take action, so be it. If we can't, because procedurally we just can't meet that timeline, then we'll have to come back in September and take action on that. We have to live within the timelines that we're forced to deal with and sometimes they conflict and they don't jive together, but we just need to keep moving as best we can to get all these things done.

Mr. Geiger: Gregg, are you fine with that?

Mr. Waugh: Yes.

Mr. Mahood: I know Rick and the team were working very closely together, to try to keep things on as tight a timeline as possible. Where it usually gets hung up is in getting the review and getting the DEIS out and getting it ready for publication.

Sam Rauch is sitting in the back here and he's working on taking care of all that, where it won't be a big problem in the future, when we get the NEPA and the Magnuson Act integrated. Until such time, I think our staff is working together. We're working very hard, I know, on this one, Phil, to try to coordinate to where they will be able to get that DEIS in as soon as possible.

Mr. Currin: I may be wrong, but from my perspective, if the Secretary or NMFS were disappointed enough with the progress that we've made on 16, they have an option to do that on their own and in reality, again, in my mind, I'm not sure that NMFS or the Secretary would be able to get it completed and more timely than the council is on schedule to do that now. Correct me if I'm wrong, Roy.

Dr. Crabtree: Just to be candid, you're right and I think we are making progress on Amendment 16 and I don't know what more we can do to get it done now. We're not contemplating anything like that, because I think it would, in fact, slow us down. I'm confident we're going to get this done no later than September and if it works out that we can do it in June, that would be great. We do the best we can.

We're in a similar situation in the Gulf with grouper right now and they really had more changes to the science that delayed them, but we both have issues with gag, in terms of needing to do some corrections, and then we had to come in and do the re-review and unfortunately, there's no convenient way in Magnuson to say oops, we found an unanticipated situation that we have to deal with and let's stop the clock. It just keeps going. It just puts you in a tough spot on these, but I think we are making as good progress as we can and we're going to get it done as quickly as we can. Mr. Waugh: The next item is Shrimp Amendment 7 and we've completed the scoping process and we'll be looking at options at this meeting and approving it for public hearings in June. It wouldn't be as many public hearings, given that we're just focusing in on mainly the rock shrimp issue. We do have one measure that deals with data collection and reviewing and approving at September and final approval at December of 2008.

Mr. Cupka: Any other questions on that for Gregg?

Mr. Waugh: Then the Comprehensive Allocation Amendment, we've completed scoping. We had a separate committee meeting in February and we'll have another one in April. The intent here is to look at options in June and have a document to approve for September and, again, this is linked to the Snapper Grouper Amendment 17, where we have to have our annual catch limits and accountability measures for our species that are undergoing overfishing. Approval for public hearings in September, public hearings in October and November, in December to look at public comment and finalize in March of 2009.

Mr. Cupka: Questions for Gregg? Seeing none --

Mr. Waugh: Then Snapper Grouper Amendment 17 and we really have to pare those options back, to focus in on the ACLs and accountability measures and look at options here in June, approve for public hearings in September. Again, that goes out to public hearings with the Comprehensive Allocation Amendment, public hearings in October and November and review in December and final approval in March of 2009.

Mr. Cupka: Okay.

Mr. Waugh: Then the LAPPs, we talked about and we'll know in June whether we're going to have something to go forward, assuming the committee's motions are approved at council, of going forward looking at something for the golden tilefish fishery.

The original schedule was looking at options in June and September and approving for public hearings in December. Obviously here this is going to impact Kate's availability for some of these other issues that are on legal deadlines, or congressionally-mandated deadlines.

Mr. Cupka: Questions or comments?

Mr. Currin: Just a comment on that and I, of course, was here during the discussions during the LAPP Committee and I do agree that we do need to make progress on whether it's Amendment 18 or just our general discussion of LAPPs. I think the move to look at the tilefish is a good one and we'll be able to make this decision in June, but in view of all that we have going on elsewhere right now, I think the council could probably benefit from some of Kate's time to accomplish those goals.

With that in mind, I want to make progress. I think it's important to make progress as we look at the golden tile fishery, but I'm not so sure that that needs to be on the front burner and turned up

high and that if we can kind of delay that schedule to some degree and get six months of Kate's time or nine months of Kate's time to work on these other higher priority, in my mind, amendments, snapper grouper amendments, that may be something we want to consider.

Again, it depends on the response we get from the golden tile fishermen, based on the inquiry, but just to let you know that's kind of where I'm thinking or that's what I'm thinking about right now.

Dr. Crabtree: I don't disagree with that, Mac. I think we've all got to recognize that right now we have a bunch of things that have statutory deadlines and those have to be our highest priorities. I guess for Bob or Gregg, how exactly are we using John Carmichael? As I understand it now, we have two new SEDAR coordinators and then we have John, who is South Atlantic Council staff and then John has a new fisheries scientist under him.

How are they fitting all of this and what's their role in the plan development team and putting these documents together? I know John is a very talented and capable guy, who could make a real contribution to the work on a lot of these documents.

Mr. Mahood: Roy, if you could hold off on that, we're going to get into all those specifics at the Personnel Committee meeting.

Mr. Cupka: Other comments or questions? I think we all recognize that and we'll have to modify that accordingly, so that we can get this other work done that has congressional deadlines associated with it. I guess we need to take action to approve this activities schedule. Basically, I guess it's not changing much from last time and so I don't know if we do or not.

Mr. Mahood: Actually, you approved it last time and it hasn't changed.

Mr. Cupka: Okay. Are there any other comments on our activities schedule then?

Mr. Geiger: I take away from this message that this meeting is absolutely critical in regard to Snapper Grouper Amendment 17 and we've got to get done what we need to get done in regard to the alternatives identified in 17 and move it forward.

Mr. Waugh: That's correct, because we've got a lot in there now, in 17, and it's our feeling that what we need to do is pare that down to items that address the annual catch limit and accountability measures and we need a real good indication of what alternatives you all are interested in looking at in March, because we work those up in June and in June, you're really going to be locked into the alternatives.

Then all the analyses and the cumulative impacts of that amendment can be calculated, so that you look at it in September. It's really sort of laying out your options and alternatives in March and looking at the analyses of those and picking preferreds in June and then seeing the cumulative impacts and all the complete analyses in September, so you can approve it for public hearing and that it can be filed as a DEIS immediately after the September meeting.

Mr. Cupka: Other comments? If not, thanks, Gregg. That will take us down to our next agenda item, which is a report on the Presidents Proposed 2009 Budget.

Mr. Mahood: I guess it's behind Tab 3. It was in the second full briefing book, the second mail out. I think it's probably just an exercise in futility anyway. I'm not sure that with the new president coming in that the outgoing president's budget is going to hold much water, but if you look on the first of the two pages, it shows the regional fisheries management councils and commissions as a line item and you can see there's a slight increase.

It certainly did not have the total of \$30 million that the councils asked for just for the councils, because the commissions get well over \$9 million, \$10 or \$11 or \$12 million, out of that anyway. There is a small increase for the councils, but not anything significant in that budget. This is just kind of informational, where we are at this point in time. I'm not sure how it will play out when we get a new administration.

Mr. Cupka: Comments or questions? Again, I don't think we need to spend a lot of time on this, but I appreciate that. That brings us down to our next agenda item, which is Review and Develop a Position on HR 4087, which was introduced by Congressman Jones from North Carolina.

In your third CD that you received, there was also a copy of a bill, HR 5425, which is Mr. Pallone's bill. They look pretty much the same to me, but I'm going to ask Bob to take us through that.

Mr. Mahood: Really, what's happened is the Jones bill has been withdrawn and the Pallone bill has superseded it, primarily because of which side of the aisle they sit on. I guess they thought Pallone's bill would go a little further. There are no significant differences in the two bills to speak of.

Of course, you have to read these bills in conjunction with your Magnuson Act to really determine what's going on, but it centers around, I guess, giving the councils more latitude in looking at the rebuilding timeframes. I think it was really kind of aimed at the flounder situation in the Mid-Atlantic. Since we're dealing in the snapper grouper fishery with longer lived species than some of the species they're dealing with up there, I'm not sure how it will affect us.

I think snowy grouper in particular -- What do we have, a thirty-four-year rebuilding schedule or something like that? This really -- I'm not sure this would help us too much in any more latitude or whether there's any latitude there anyway, but I can go through it piece by piece, if you wish, very quickly.

The language -- You can see the first under (1) (A), under the Section 304(e). It changes "possible" to "practicable" and I'm not sure -- I'm not a semantics person and I'm not sure I see a whole lot of -- I guess possible means you've got to do it as soon as possible and practicable means as soon as practicable and I think it's geared towards looking more and putting more emphasis on the socioeconomic impacts of your action is the intent.

If you go down under the (B), (B) (ii), currently, that reads -- Currently, it reads not to exceed ten years, except in cases where the biology of the stock of fish, other environmental conditions, or management measures under an international agreement in which the United States participates dictates otherwise. For that little bit of language, they've submitted (I) through (VI) and so a lot more additional guidance type language has been submitted that, again, is geared towards the ten-year rebuilding program.

Then under Number (2) in paragraph (7), subparagraph (A), they insert more language that's new language that currently doesn't exist and so it is all new language there that talks about evaluating progress to the end of overfishing and to rebuild overfished stocks of fish. Then they had some new language also at the end of Number (7). They added a Number (8) and a Number (9). Again, this language doesn't currently exist and speaks to the rebuilding timeframes. I'm not sure -- Maybe in flounder it would make a difference, but I'm not sure how it would affect us any differently in our long-lived species.

Mr. Boyles: I'm not on your committee, but just for point of discussion. One of the things we were asked about this bill by some of our congressional folks and my read on it is -- My sense of things is the Reauthorized Magnuson really got us some things and really provided the shot in the arm to fixing a lot of what's been wrong with the process for a long time.

My sense of things is that flexibility is a good thing. It sells well, but I think it would be probably, in the long term, some backsliding. My sense of things is I think the reauthorized bill, while it does have its issues, or the reauthorized act does have some issues, I think there were some gains made there.

I think, quite frankly, and I've said it before, but I think Congress is tired of the situation of overfishing continuing and stocks continuing to decline and they spoke in late 2006. As a result, my particular interest and my take on this, if I understand it correctly, is this is a step back to the old days and I'm not sure that I'm very interested in it. Thank you.

Mr. Geiger: I think that was very well said, Robert. I asked this to be included because at the two previous council chair meetings, there's been some discussion from other councils about lending unanimous support from all of the councils in regard to supporting what was the Jones bill and now is the Pallone bill.

What the CCC has done thus far is they've sent a letter requesting that public hearings be conducted and I think they either were or were to some degree held, but there's been noises made by other council chairs that they want to get support to actually support the Pallone bill and issue a letter of support from the council chairs.

I'm uncomfortable, personally, signing up to that without direction from this council and having a discussion on where we stand. Without belaboring the point, I certainly come from the position that Robert spoke and I believe that Congress recognized what really needed to be done and the pressures that were brought to bear on councils in the past because of socioeconomic issues and the lack of ending overfishing that we've been saddled with as a result of having that flexibility. I think that I would certainly speak in support that we have a reauthorized Magnuson Act and I think it's a good thing.

Mr. Cupka: Thank you, George. I was going to ask what the discussion -- I know that the Council Chair Coordination Committee has been talking about this for a couple of meetings and I was interested in that and so --

Mr. Geiger: If I might take it one step -- The Mid-Atlantic Council is kind of the lead council and the argument all does revolve around summer flounder and so the other councils have not weighed in one way or the other with any hard positions, but the impetus is being provided by the Mid-Atlantic Council to do this.

Mr. Cupka: From my own personal perspective, I certainly agree with both you and Robert and I think this would be a step backward, in some regards, and I would be kind of hesitant to support it, but that's up to this committee, I guess, and ultimately to the full council.

Ms. Shipman: I think we ought to just stay silent on it. I think we shouldn't comment and not to favor it and not to disfavor it. I agree with George and Robert and I just don't think it warrants our comment.

Mr. Geiger: If we took that, then that would mean that if they requested us to sign on to a letter, we would just not sign on.

Ms. Shipman: I think we would say we don't have a position on it. That's what our agency does on certain bills. We just say we don't have a position.

Mr. Geiger: That's certainly a position to have, is no position. I think we've heard three people, at least, speak up and say there is a position and so it would be interesting to carry this discussion forward and maybe see if we can get a motion.

Mr. Mahood: It was interesting the letter that the CCC got back. It kind of implied that it wasn't going to go very far. I don't know if I sent that letter out and if I didn't, I will. It basically said thanks for the request, but we'll take care of it internally and that type of thing. I'm not sure whether that will -- How far that will move forward.

I think, as George said, there wasn't a whole lot of interest, other than maybe the Mid-Atlantic Council. I didn't garner much interest, and, Duane, I don't know if you did either, in the other councils supporting that.

Mr. Harris: I'm not sure. It was hard to determine whether there was other council support. I got a sense that some of the other councils supported a little bit more flexibility, but I don't know that that really came across as -- It certainly didn't come across in the form of any kind of motion or anything.

Mr. Currin: The North Carolina Marine Fisheries Commission has written one letter to Congressman Jones supporting the spirit of his bill, when it was introduced early. We've been asked by the industry in our state to offer more stated support for that bill and I guess it's now

the Pallone bill.

The commission is developing a letter at this point to that effect, to some degree, but our commission as well has some real reservations about the bill as it is written right now and one is the indeterminate, or possibly indeterminate, timelines for rebuilding. There's a big concern there, for the same reasons that Robert stated.

The other concern that we have has to do with the open-endedness, in my opinion at least, of one of the terms that used and it's "other environmental conditions" and I think those need to be specified, to some degree.

Again, it's very open ended and how do we determine what environmental conditions matter or to what degree they matter and the other biggest concern that we have is defining what a positive trend in recovery is. Is it a slope of one degree or hopefully a more meaningful slope than that, that's going to recover these fisheries much more quickly than a very slight increase, positive increase, towards recovery? There's some support, but with considerable reservations.

Mr. Cupka: Thank you, Mac, for those comments.

Mr. Robson: Recently, the Fish and Wildlife Commission chairman sent a letter to Florida congressional delegates, generally -- Kind of along the lines of I think what North Carolina may have done, supporting the concern of having the time to adequately address socioeconomic impacts of rebuilding schedules on the local or state communities and there's a concern about that.

The state has a concern about that, because it's being asked to participate in the rebuilding of some certain stocks, where they occur in both federal and state waters, that the schedules that are set forth have a significant impact on the local socioeconomic situation, depending on the timeframe.

It doesn't address, necessarily, because we don't have situations where rebuilding schedules are necessarily a concern, but I think the general concern of the commission is that for the state to be able to participate in positive rebuilding of stocks that the aggressive schedules for rebuilding plans or for ending overfishing may preclude an adequate addressing of socioeconomic impacts and that's a concern they have. That was basically the tenor of the letter.

Ms. Shipman: Which is why I suggest no position. I think we've got different state members that have different positions and all and we can write something to the effect of we agree with the Magnuson Act's revisions, in terms of ending overfishing, and there are concerns about socioeconomic, but I just don't know that we're going to come to consensus on what the letter ought to say. While we as individual members sitting around the table may feel one way, I think our governing bodies, policy bodies, in terms of the agencies, may feel differently.

Mr. Geiger: I don't know I'm going to be able to -- If we're requested to sign on, tell me what you want me to do. No position and we don't sign on? No? That's all I need. It's fine. The question was what do we do if we're requested to sign on and I guess the general consensus

around the committee is that we don't sign on, but we don't have a stated position that we support or do not support the Pallone bill.

Mr. Currin: I have one more comment, David, because one other aspect of the letter that both the Division of Marine Fisheries has already written and perhaps will be likely included in the letter from the North Carolina Marine Fisheries Commission was to support the notion of holding open hearings and inviting the members of the council, the council chairs, NGOs, and representatives of the recreational community to comment on this bill.

There have been some hearings already and if this thing gains any traction at all, then there could be additional hearings, where the council chairs or some representative of the council may be invited. That may have some implications on the position that the council takes. If you're invited, I guess we could go say we have no comment or we can stake ourselves out.

Mr. Mahood: I think what happened -- Maybe people don't quite understand what happens at the CCC. We actually have a letterhead with everybody's logo on it and everything and what they do is when they reach a consensus on something, all eight council chairmen will sign that letter and that's what George was asking, should he sign that letter? I don't think we need to send out a letter one way or the other on behalf of the council, but I think we will be asked in May, probably by the Mid-Atlantic, is there going to be a consensus. My feeling is that we just would not be one of the -- Our logo wouldn't be on it and George wouldn't be signing it.

Mr. Cupka: Other comments? Do you feel like you have what you need, Mr. Chairman? All right. Thank you. That brings us down to Other Business and is there any other business to come before the Joint Executive/Finance Committee? Hearing none, then this meeting is adjourned.

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 10:50 o'clock a.m., March 4, 2008.)

Certified By:	Date:
---------------	-------

Transcribed By: Graham Transcriptions, Inc. April 2008

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 2007- 2008 Council Membership

GOUNCIL CHAIRMAN: George J. Geiger B66:Poñoka Street Sebastian, FL 32958 772/388-3183 (ph) Georgejgeiger@bellsouth.net

COUNCIL VICE-CHAIRMAN

Charles Duane Harris 105 Demere Retreat Lane St. Simons Island, GA 31522 912/638-9430 (ph) seageorg@bellsouth.net

Deirdre Warner-Kramer

Office of Marine Conservation OES/OMC 2201 C Street, N.W. Department of State, Room 5806 Washington, DC 20520 202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f) Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

- Robert H. Boyles, Jr.

S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources Marine Resources Division P.O. Box 12559 (217 Ft. Johnson Road) Charleston, SC 29422-2559 843/953-9304 (ph) 843/953-9159 (fax) boylesr@dnr.sc.gov

Representative U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service

Dr. Brian Cheuvront

N.C. Division of Marine Fisheries P.O. Box 769 (3441 Arendell St.) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/726-7021 Ext. 8015 (ph) 252/726-6187 brian.cheuvront@ncmail.net

Dr. Roy Crabtree

Regional Administrator NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region 263 13th Avenue South St. Petersburg, FL 33701 727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f) roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

7

- David M. Cupka P.O. Box 12753 Charleston, SC 29422 843/795-8591 (hm) 843/870-5495 (cell) dkcupka@bellsouth.net

-Benjamin M. "Mac" Currin 801 Westwood Drive Raleigh, NC 27607 919/881-0049 (ph) mcurrin1@bellsouth.net

Anthony L. Iarocci 236 Guava Avenue Grassy Key, FL 33050 305/743-7162 (ph); 305/743-2697(f)

Rita G. Merritt

38 Pelican Drive Wrightsville Beach, NC 28480 910/256-3197 (ph); 910/256-3689 (f) miridon@ec.rr.com

John V. O'Shea Executive Director Atlantic States Marine Fisheries Commission 1444 Eye Street, N.W., 6th Floor Washington, D.C. 20005 202/289-6400 (ph); 202/289-6051 (f) voshea@asmfc.org

Lt. Brian Sullivan

U.S. Coast Guard Brickell Plaza Federal Building 909 S.E. First Avenue Room 876/ DRE Miami, FL 33131-3050 305/415-6781 (ph) 305/415-6791 (f) Brian.A.Sullivan@uscg.mil

Mark Robson

Director, Division of Marine Fisheries Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission 620 S. Meridian Street Tallahassee, FL 32399 850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f) mark.robson@myfwc.com Susan Shipman

Director, Coastal Resources Division GA Dept. of Natural Resources One Conservation Way, Suite 300 Brunswick, GA 31520-8687 912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f) sshipman@dnr.state.ga.us

Tom Swatzel P.O. Box 1311 Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 (C/O Capt. Dick's Marina 4123 Hwy 17 Business, Murrells Inlet, SC 29576) 843/357-1673 (ph) tom@captdicks.com

Vohn A. Wallace 5 Buddy Beckham Road P.O. Box 88 Meridian, GA 31319 912/437-6797 (ph); 912/437-3635 (f) Ga_shrimp@darientel.net

JOE KIMMEL JACK MCGOVENN MONICO SMIT. BRUNELO JON JAMIR PHIL STEELE SCOTT ZIMMERMAN TOM MCJUNAIN BRUCE JRWIN DAN WHITTLE BOUNSE PONDITH

3

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 2007 - 2008 Committees

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

David Cupka, Chair Robert Boyles Brian Cheuvront George Geiger Tony larocci Rita Merritt Staff contact: Kim Iverson

ALLOCATION Committee

Brian Chevront, Chair Duane Harris George Geiger John Wallace Rita Merritt Robert Boyles Tom Swatzel

ECONOMICS

Robert Boyles, Chair Brian Cheuvront Mac Currin Roy Crabtree George Geiger Duane Harris Rita Merritt John Wallace Staff Contact: Kate Quigley

ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT*

Duane Harris, Chair Columbus Brown Roy Crabtree David Cupka Mac Currin Brian Cheuvront George Geiger Tony Iarocci Rita Merritt Mark Robson Susan Shipman Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP Gregg Waugh- FEP Comprehensive Amendment

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT / NEPA

George Geiger, Chair Robert Boyles Columbus Brown Brian Cheuvront Tony Iarocci Rita Merritt Mark Robson Brian Sullivan Staff contact: Rick DeVictor

EXECUTIVE

George Geiger, Chair Duane Harris, Vice-Chair David Cupka Brian Cheuvront Susan Shipman Staff contact: Bob Mahood

FINANCE

David Cupka, Chair Mac Currin George Geiger Duane Harris Susan Shipman Staff contact: Bob Mahood

GOLDEN CRAB

Tony larocci, Chair John Wallace, Vice Chair George Geiger Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

HABITAT & ENVIRON. PROTECTION

Duane Harris, Chair Robert Boyles Columbus Brown George Geiger Vince O'Shea John Wallace Staff contact: Roger Pugliese

HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES

Rita Merritt, Chair Brian Cheuvront George Geiger Brian Sullivan Tom Swatzel Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

INFORMATION & EDUCATION

Robert Boyles, Chair Columbus Brown Mac Currin George Geiger Mark Robson Brian Sullivan Tom Swatzel Staff contact: Kim Iverson

KING & SPANISH MACKEREL

David Cupka, Chair Roy Crabtree Mac Currin Brian Cheuvront George Geiger

Rita Merritt

Tom Swatzel Ron Smith, Mid-Atlantic Representative Jack Travelstead, Mid-Atlantic Representative Staff contact: Gregg Waugh Ĩ

(

ł

I

(

{ |

> ı ç

> L

T

.

1

LAW ENFORCEMENT

George Geiger Duane Harris Rita Merritt Brian Sullivan Tom Swatzel John Wallace Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

LIMITED ACCESS PRIVILEGE PROGRAM COMMITTEE

Rita Merritt, Chair Robert Boyles Roy Crabtree David Cupka Mac Currin Brian Cheuvront George Geiger Tony Iarocci Susan Shipman Tom Swatzel John Wallace Staff contact: Kate Quigley

MARINE PROTECTED AREA

Tony Iarocci, Chair Mac Currin, Vice Chair Columbus Brown George Geiger Duane Harris Brian Sullivan Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

PERSONNEL

Susan Shipman, Chair David Cupka Brian Cheuvront George Geiger Duane Harris Staff contact: Bob Mahood

ROBERT BOYLES Tom Swatzer Tom McIlwo, W

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Staff

Executive Director Robert K. Mahood robert.mahood@safmc.net

Deputy Executive Director Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

Public Information Officer Kim Iverson kim.iverson@safmc.net

Senior Fishery Biologist Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

Staff Economist Kathryn (Kate) Quigley kate.quigley@safmc.net

Cultural Anthropologist Open Position

Environmental Impact Scientist Rick DeVictor richard.devictor@safmc.net

Science and Statistics Program Manager John Carmichael john.carmichael@safmc.net

SEDAR Coordinators Julie Neer - Julie.Neer@safmc.net Dale Theiling - Dale.Theiling@safmc.net

2

Fishery Biologist Andi Stephens Andi.Stephens@safmc.net

Coral Reef Biologist Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

Administrative Officer Mike Collins mike.collins@safmc.net

Financial Secretary Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

Purchasing/Adm. Assistant Julie O'Dell julie.odell@safmc.net

SEDAR/ Staff Administrative Assistant Rachael Lindsay rachael.lindsay@safmc.net

GREGE EWONSON

PLEASE SIGN IN

So that we will have a record of your attendance at each meeting and so that your name may be included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown below.

Executive/Finance Committee		
Jekyll Island, GA		
Tuesday, March 4, 2008		

NAME & ORGANIZATION	AREA CODE & PHONE NUMBER	P.O. BOX/STREET <u>CITY, STATE & ZIP</u>
James Recies	772-332-2828	14390 orange Ave Ft. Pierce F1, 334945
Sera Harold	910-93762-4401	Wilmington, NC
Shern Lakin	352 3921845	Ganwille F
Sarah Fangman	912,598.2428	10 Ocean Sci Cir Sav GA 31411
1)		

South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 4055 Faber Place Drive, Suite 201 North Charleston, SC 29405 843-571-4366 or Toll Free 866/SAFMC-10